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From: nicki.garcia@akerman.com

Sent: Thursday, February 25, 2010 4:31 PM

To: Filings@psc.state.fl.us

Cc: Charles Murphy; Jamie Morrow; mg2708@att.com; th9467@att.com; paul.guarisco@phelps.com;,
jimdry@newphone.com; matthew feil@akerman.com

Subject: Electronic Filing - Docket No. 100022-TP

Attachments: 20100225171620271.pdf

Attached is an electronic filing for the docket referenced below. If you have any questions, please contact either Matt Feil or Nicki
Garcia at the numbers below. Thank you.

Person Responsible for Filing:

Matthew Feil

AKERMAN SENTERFITT

106 East College Avenue, Suite 1200
Tallahassee, FL 32301

(850) 425-1614 (direct)

{(850) 222-0103 (main)
matt.feil@akerman.com

Docket No. and Name: Daocket No. 100022-TP - In Re: Compiaint of BellScuth Telecommunications, Inc., d/b/a AT&T Florida
Against Image Access, Inc. d/b/a NewPhone

Filed on behalf of: NewPhone
Total Number of Pages: 14

Description of Documents:  Answer, Affirmative Defenses and Counter-Claim

Nicki Garcia
Office of:

Lila A. Jaber
Matthew Feil
Braulio Baez

Akerman Senterfitt

106 East College Avenue, Suite 1200
Tallahassee, FL 32301

(850) 425-1677

Nicki. Garcia@Akerman.com

www.akerman.com

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTE: The information contained in this transmission may be privileged and confidential information, and is intended only for the use of the individual or entity
named above. If the reader of this message is not the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any dissemination, distribution or copying of this communication s strictly prohibited. If
you have received this transmission in ervor, please immediately reply to the sender that you have received this communication in error and then delete it. Thank you.

CIRCULAR 230 NOTICE: To comply with U.S, Treasury Department and IRS regulations, we are required to advise you that, unless expressly stated otherwise, any 1).5. federal tax advice

contained in this transmittal, is not intended or written to be used, and cannot be used, by any person for the purpose of (i) avoiding pfikftikshtridey me!HLS}demalRBv'ppue'Code, or (ii)

promoting, marketing or recommending to another party any transaction or matter addressed in this e-mail or attachment. o R
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B ATTORNEYS AT LAW

Dailas Suite 1200

Denver 106 East College Avenge
Fort Lavderdale Tallphassee, FL 32301
Jacksonvilie
Las Angeles
Madison /50 224 9634 vef 830222 0103 fax
Miasni

New York

Orlando

Tallahassee

Fampa

Tysons Comer

Washifigton, DC

West Pali Beach

www.akermanp.com

Febiuary 25, 2010

VIA ELECTRONIC FILING

Ms. Ann Cole

Commission Clerk

Florida Public Service Commission
2540.8humard Oak Boulevard
Tallahassee, FL. 32399

Re:  Docket 100022-TP — Complaint of BeliSouth Telecommunications, Inc., d/b/a AT&T
Florida Against Image Access, Inc. d/b/a NewPhone

Dear Ms. Cole:

Please find attached for filing the Answer, Affirmative Defenses and Counter-Claim of
Image Access; Inc. d/b/a NewPhone:.

Your assistaricé in this matter is greatly appreciated. Sheuld you have any questions,
please do not hesitate to contact me.

Scﬁreiy,

Attachments
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_ STATE OF FLORIDA |
PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

In Re: Complaint of BellSouth Té¢lecom-
munications, Inc., d/b/a AT&T Florida
Against Image Access, Inc, d/b/a
NewPhone

Docket No. 100022-TP

R

ANSWER, AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSES
AND COUNTER-CLAIM OF IMAGE ACCESS, INC. d/b/a NEWPHONE

Pursuant to Rule 28-106.203, Florida Administrative Code, Image Access, Inc. d/b/a
NewPhone (“NewPhone™), hereby files the following Answer and Affirmative Defenses to the
Complaint and Petition for Relief (“Complaint™) filed by BellSouth Telecommunications, Inc.
d/b/a AT&T Southeast d/bla AT&T Florida (“*AT&T™), and further asserts the Counter-Claim set
forth below, |

ANSWER

Subject to and without waiving its affirmative defenses, NéwPhone responds in answer to
AT&T’s Complaint by denying each and every allegation contained therein, except those.
allegations which may be hercinafier specifically admitted. To the extent necessary to address in
this Answer, NewPhone denies any aflegation in fhe "Backgiound & Summary" section,
headings and non-enumerated portions of AT&T 's Complaint. NewPhone further answers the
specific allegations contained in the numbered paragraphs of AT&T's Complaint as follows:

1. NewPhone denies the allegations contained in Paragraph 1 of the Complaint for

lack of information sufficient to justify a belief therein.

PECUMINT NoMars . haTr
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Answer, Defenses, Counterclaim
February 25, 2010

2, NewPhone accepts the designation of AT&T’s representative in Paragraph 2 of
the Complaint.

3 NewPhone admits the allegations contained in Paragraph 3 of the Complaint.

4. In response to Paragraph 4 of the Complaint, NewPhone admits that it entered
into an Interconnection Agreement with AT&T in.2002 (the “2002 Interconnection Agrecment’).
NewPhone answers that as of the effective date of the Interconnection Agreement between
NewPhone and AT&T dated April 19, 2006, as amended and extended on March 31, 2009 (the
“2006 Interconnection Agreement”), the 2006 Interconnection Agreement superseded the 2002
Interconnection Agreement, NewPhane further answers that the provisions of the 2002 and 2006
in Paragraph 4.

5, In response to Paragraph 5 of the Complaint, NewPhone admits that it entered
into the 2006 Interconnection Agreement with AT&T, NewPhorne answers that the provisions of
the 2006 Interconnection Agreement speak for themselves. NewPhone denies any remaining
allegations in Paragraph 5.

6. NewPhone denies the alegations contained in the first sentence of Paragraph 6 of
the Complaint. NewPhone is without knowledge or information sufficient to form a belief as-10
the truth of the allegations in the sécond sentence of Paragraph 6 concerning AT&T*s
determinations and beliefs and therefore dentes such allegations.

7. NewPhone denies the allegations contained in Paragraph 7 of the Complaint for

lack of information sufficient to justify a belief therein,
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Answer, Defenses, Counterciaim
February 25, 2010

8. NewPhone denies. the allegations contained in Paragraph 8 of the Complaint for
lack of information sufficient to justify a belief therein.

9. NewPhone denies the allegations contained in Paragraph 9 of the Complaint.

10.  NewPhone denies the allegations contained in Paragraph 10 of the Complaint for
lack of information sufficient to justify a belief therein.

11.  NewPhone denies the allegations contained in Paragraph 11 of the Complaint as
written and further answers that AT&T has violated 47 1J.8.C. § 251(c)(4), 47 C.F.R. 51.605 and
47 CFR. 51.613(b) and breached the partiés’ 2002 Interconnection Agreement and/or 2006
Interconnection: Agreement by (a) failing to provide NewPhone with the appropriate resale
promotion credit, (b) imposing unreasonable ‘and diseriminatory restrictions on resale, and (¢)
failing 1o oObtain necessary and prior approval from the Commission, pursuant to 47 C.FR.
51.613(b), prior to imposing & restriction on resale.

12, NewPhone denies the allegations contamed in Paragraph 12 of the Complaint.
NewPhone further answers that AT&T's resale restriction denies NewPhone the proper
promotional discount and may result in 8 wholesale price to NewPhone that exceeds the retail
price for AT&T’s customers.’

13.  NewPhone denies the allegations contained in Paragraph 13 of the Complaint, and

further answers that the provisions of the Act and Commission orders speak for themselves.

" When the retail price of the AT&T service is'$20, and the cash-back pramotion provided by AT&T 1o the retail
sustomer is-$30, the customer’s effective retail rate is ~$30. Under AT&T s Tormula, it would apply the wholesale
discount of 21.83% to the $20 rale and the $50 promotion 16 arrive al a wholesale rate of -$23.45, Thus, the
wholesale rate would exceed the effective retail rate by $6.55. Ciearly, the Commission did net intend for wholesale
rates to be greater than retail rates when establishing the resale discount.

FL218026;1 3




Answer, Defenses, Counterclaim
February 25, 2010

14.  NewPhone denies the allegations contained in Paragraph 14 of the Complaint, and
further answers that NewPhone has not sought any credits from AT&T in connection -with
AT&T’s customer referral marketing promotions such as the “word-of-mouth” promotion such
that AT&T has no cause of action against NewPhone.

15.  NewPhone denies the allegations contained in Paragraph 15 of the Complaint, and
further answers that the provisions of the Act speak for themselves and that NewPhone has not
sought any credits froin AT&T in connection with AT&T's customer referral marketing
promotions such as the “word-of-mouth” promotion such that AT&T has no cause of action.
against NewPhone.

16.  NewPhone-denies the allegations contained in Paragraph 16 of the Complaint, and
further answers that the provisions of the Act speak for themselves, and that it has riot sought any
credits from AT&T in connection with AT&T’s customer referral marketing promotions such as
the “word-of-mouth™ promotion such that- AT&T has no cause of action against NewPhone.

17.  NewPhone denies the aﬂegaﬁon‘s contained in Paragraph 17 of the Complaint as
written, and further answers that the provisions. of the Act and. decisions of the federal Gourts
speak for themselves. NewPhone further answers that the Complairit should be held in abeyance
on the grounds of primary jutisdiction pending a decision by-the FCC in WC Docket No. 06-129.

18.  Paragraph 18 of the Complaint does not make claim-rélated allegations to which
NewPhone must respond. However, NewPhone answers that thete are disputed issues of
material fact in this matter including but not limited to the amounts in dispute and the foundation

therefor,
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Answer, Defenses, Counterclaim
February 25, 2010

19, NewPhone denies that AT&T is entitled to relief pursuant to the rules and statutes
it cites in Paragraph 19 of the Complaint. NewPhone further states if the Commission does not
dismiiss or hold this:matter in abeyanee, the Commission should grant NewPhone relief pursuant
to federal law governing resale of telecommunications services.

Responding to the “REQUEST FOR RELIEF” pertion of the Complaint, NewPhone
denies that AT&T is entitled to the relief requested. NewPhong denies all allegations made in
any usnumbeted pardgraphs of the Complaint.

NEWPHONE'S AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSES

1. The Complaint fails to state a cause of action, in whole or in part, against
NewPhone.

2. The Florida Public Service Commission (the “Commission should decline to hear
this Complaint because this matter involves an interpretation of the Telecommunications Act of
1996 (the “Act”) and Federal Communication Commission (“FCC”) regulations promulgated,
thereunder relating to AT&T"s resale obligations and the prohibition against imposing
unreasonable or discriminatory conditions or limitations on resale, which issues are présently
pending before the FCC, the most appropriate body to intetpret its own re.gula‘t’ions:i Therefore;
the Commission should hold this matter in abeyance until such time as the FCC renders a

decision.

* Bec Jn the matter of Petition of Imiage decess, Ine. d/bla NewPhone for Declaratory Ruling Regarding fncumbent
Local Exchange Carrier Promotions Avdilable for Resale Uinder the Commumications Act of 1934, as Amended, and
Sections 51.601 et seq. qf the Cummission's Ruales; Petition for Declaratory Ruling of Image-Access, Ing. ditita
NewPhone, FCC W Docket No, 06-129 (filed June 13, 2006),
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Answer, Defenses, Counterclaim
Febroary 25, 2010

3. The Commission should further decline to hear this Complaint because the issue
that is the subject of the Complaint, AT&T"s resale obligations under the Act and FCC
regulations, is presently pending in the Uhited States District Court for the Western District 6f
North Carolina,® which previously was involved in a line of decisions that resulted in a Fourth
Circuit ruling finding that the Act-and FCC regulations require AT&T to make available to
comipetitive local exchange carrier (“CLEC”) resellers the promotional discounts offered to
ATE&T’s retail customers. Because the interpretation of the court®s decision may be central toa
resolation of the issue set forth in the Complaint, the Commission should hold this matter in
abeyance until such time as the federal court renders a decision.

4, Tn addition, the Commission should decline to-hear this Complaint because the
United States Court of Appeals for the Fifth Circuit is currently considering an appeal by AT&T
Inc., ultimate parent company of AT&T, from a preliminary injunction issued by the United
States District Court for the Northern District of Texas.* That case involves whether AT&T’s
newly proposed methodology for calculating the ressle promotion credits due to CLEC resellers
constitutes a restriction on resale requiring advanced staté cominission approval. AT&T has

filed a Motion for Abeyance in Louisiana Public Service Commission (“L.PSC”) Docket No.

appeal miay provide guidance to the patties in that docket, and could be dispositive of some or all

of the issues:associated with that docket; and that administrative and judicial economy are well §
* See CGM, LLC v. BellSouth Telecommunications, Ine., AT&ET Billing Southeast, LLC fi/a AT&T Billing ;
Somhea.\:i Inc. and AT&T Carp., Case 3:09-CV-00377 (W DIN.C. filed Aug. 28,:2009). 1

See Budget Prepay, Inc. v. AT&T Inc. fil/a SBC Communications, Inc., No. 09-11188 c/w 09-11099 {(s* Cir.).
* LPSC Docket No. U-31202, Inre: BellSouth Telecommunicaticns, hé. d/b/a AT&TL:’mmana, Petitionfor Review
Concerning Regdlé Promation Methodblogy Adiustment.
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Answer, Defensces, Counterclaim
February 25, 2010

setved and resources appropriately conserved by holding that docket in abeyance. The LPSC
granted AT&Ts Motion by Order dated February 18,2010.° Likewise, the Commission should
decline to hear this Complaint because similar issues are involved in this matter, to wit: the issue
of whether AT&T has refused to provide CLEC resellers the proper promotional discounts and
whether such tefusal constitutes a restriction on resale requiring advanced state commission
approval.

5. AT&T has violated 47 U.8.C. § 251(c)(4), 47 CF R. 51.605 and 47 C.F.R.
51.613(b) by failing to provide NewPhone with the appropriate resale promotion.credit, and by
failing to obtain Commission approval before placing restrictions on resale.

6. AT&T’s claims are barred and/or preempted, in whole orin part, by federal laws
and regulations, including (without limitation) 47 U.5.C. § 3‘?.51'(65(4‘), 47 C.F.R. 51.605 and 47
C.F.R. 51.613(b), |

7. AT&Ts claims are barred, in whole ot in part, by the doctrines of unclean hands,
laches, forbearance, waiver, and/or estoppel.

8. The FCC has primary jurisdiction over all or part of AT&T’s claims,

9, AT&T’s claims are barred, in whole or in part, by its failure to mitigate any
damages allegedly sustained,

10.  AT&Ts claims are barred, in whole orin part, by the applicable statute of
limitations.

1. AT&T has (or had) a contractual ebligation to pursue, escalate, and preserve ifs

claim to the disputed amounts it seeks in its Complaint in accordance with the applicable

* See, LPSC Ducket No. U-31202, Order dated February 18, 2010,
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Answer, Defenses, Counterclaim
February 25, 2010

provisions of the parties® 2002 and 2006 Interconnection Agreements. Upon information and.
belief, AT&T failed to do so. Accordingly, AT&T should be barred from pursuing claims that it
failed to contractually preserve.

12.  AT&T s right to recover, if any, is offset in whole or in part, for the reasons stated
in NewPhone's counter-claim.

13.  NewPhone asserts the right to atiorneys’ fees after successful defense of this
matter to the extent allowed under the terms of its Interconnection Agreements with AT&T
and/or applicable law.

NewPhone reserves the right to amend this answer to add other affirmative defenses

which are determined to be.applicable upon discovery in this case.

COUNTER CLAIM

And now, acting as Plaintiff in its Counter-Claim, NewPhone represents as follows:

1. Defendant is BellSouth Telecommunications, Inc. dib/a AT&T Southeast d/b/a
AT&T Florida (“AT&T™).

2. AT&T has violated 47 U.S:C. § 251(c)(8); 47 C.F.R, 51.605 and 47 C.F.R,
51.613(b) and breached the parties” 2002 Interconnection Agreement and/or 2006
Interconnection Agreement by (a) failing to provide NewPhone with the appropriate resale
promotion credit and/ox refund, (b) imposing unreasonable and discriminatory restrictions on
resale, and (c) failing to obtain necessary and prior approval from the Commission, pursuant to
47 C.F.R. 51.613(b), prior to imposing a restriction on resale. AT&T’s actions are unlawfully

discriminatory and anticompetifive and caused financial harm to NewPhone. AT&T owes
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Answer, Defenses, Counterclaim
February 25, 2010

NewPhone for all amounts wrongfully withheld and/or not properly credited or refunded to
NewPhone.

3. AT&T is required to offer ils services for résale “subjéct to the same conditions”
that AT&T offers its own end-users and at “the rate for the telecommunications service less
avoided retail costs.”” For example, when AT&T offers retail telephone service in conjunietion
with a “$50 cash-back™ rebate to new customers, AT&T must make that offer available to
resellers such as NewPhene “under the same conditions,” that is, with a $50 cash rebate, and “at
the rate for such telecommunications services less the avoided retail costs,” that s, at the tariffed
for each new wholesale line but, would still pay AT&T for the monthly use of the line at the
tariffed retail rate fess-the wholesale discount. Here, the rebate offer does not-change the
competitive balance between the carriers. On:the one hand, AT&T earns exactly the same
margin ~ the tariffed retail rate less the wholesale discount — whether or not AT&T offers new
customers a rebate. On the other hand, NewPhone receives exactly the same benefit that it
notimally receives from the avoided cost discount — the tariffed rate 16ss the wholesale discount —
and the same $50 rebate that AT&T offers new retail customers. Like AT&T, NewPhone isno
better or worse off than NewPhone would be if AT&T was not offering the $50 rebate. Neither

carrier gains a competitive advantage or a financial windfall as a result of the rebate program:

7

47 CFR.§ 51.603(b) and 47 CFR § 51.607. Furthermore, other than in limited citcumstances not applicable here,
AT&T cannot impose any restrictions on the resale of its sérvices unless AT&T “proves to the state commission that
the restriction is reasonable and non-discriminatory.” 47 CFR §51.613
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Answet, Defenses, Counterclaim
February 25, 2010

4. In Paragraph 12 of its Complaint, AT&T uses an example to explain its method
for calculating the resale promotional credit due CLEC resellers of AT&T s cash-back
promotions. AT&T’s method involves applying the Commission's wholesale discount of
21.83% to the face value of the promotion. The avoided cost discount represents the costs
avoided when AT&T provides the service on a wholesale rather than refail basis.® Therefore, the
avoided cost discount should not be applied to reduce the amount of a promotion, such as a $50
cash back offer. As explained above in paragraph 3, cash back promotions should be treated as a
conditien of service, which must be applied oi1 a nondiscriminatory basis (1.¢;, if the retail
application to the cash-back promotion, it should, based on the theory of costs avoided, be
applied to reflect the costs AT&T avoids in providing the $50 cash-back to the reseller rather
than to AT&T’s retail customer. The same costs (e.g., marketing, overhead, eto.) are avoided in
this context. However, because the cash back promotion involves the payment of money by
rather than to AT&T, the cost avoided discount should be applied in a manner that raises the:
amount of the promotion when provided to CLECs.in the wholesale context. If applied in the
manner AT&T suggests 1o the most common cash-back promotions (i.¢., promotions where the
tariffed retail rate of the service is less than the amount of the associated cash-back promotion),
the effect of applying the avoided cost discount would be to:increase AT&T’s own revenues —
and the costs to CLEC resellers —when a promotion is:sold on a whelesale rather than retail
basis. Clearly, this is not what was intended by the FOC’s rules. Thisform of regulatory

arbitiage is both anticompetitive and unlawfully discriminatory.

# 47 CF.R. Section 51.607.
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Answer, Defenses, Counterclaim
February 25, 2010

5. For these reasons, AT&T owes NewPhone for all amounts wrongfully withheld
apnd/or.not properly credited or refunded to NewPhone, in an amount to be determined, and
NewPheone is entitled to an order of the Commission so stating,

WHEREFORE, having responded 16 the Complaint as above, NewPhone respectfully
requests:

(1) that its answer be deemed good and sufficient and afier due proceedings are had, that
the Complaint of AT&T be denied and dismissed with prejudice at its sole cost;

(2) in the alternative, that its answer be deemed good and sufficient and that AT&T’s
Complaint be held in abeyanee pending decisions by the FCC in WC Docket No. 06-129,° the
United States Distriet Court for the Western District of North Carolina in Case Ne. 3:09-cv-
00377,'" and the United States Court of Appeals for the Fifth Circuit, Case Nos. 09-11188 and
09-11099, on the appeal of the decision of the United States District Court for the Nosthern
District of Texas, Case No. 3:09-cv-1494-p; !

{3) that there be judgment in NewPhone’s favor en its Counter-Claim, finding and
declaring that AT&T has breached its Interconnection Agreements with NewPhone by
wrongfully overcharging NewPhone and wrongfully withholding credits due and payable to

NewPhong, finding and declaring that NQWPh;qm: has been financially harmed as a result of

Local Exchange Carrier Promotions Available for Resalé Under the Communications dct-of 1934, o5 Awmiended, and
Sactions 51,607 et seq. of the Commigsion’s Rules, Petition for Declaratory Ruling of Thage Avcess, Ing. d/bfa
NewPhone, FCC WC Docket No. 06-129 (filed June 13, 2006).

® See CGM, LLC v. BeliSouth Telecommunications, Inc., AT&T Billing Southeast, LLC f/k/a AT&T Billing
Southeast, Inc. and AT&T Corp., Case 3:09-CV-00377 (W.DN.C. filed Aug, 28, 2009).

" See Budget Prepay, Inc. v. AT&T Inc. fik/a SBC Communications, Inc.,; No. 09-11188 ¢/w 09-11099 (5% Cir.).
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Answer, Defenses, Counterclaim
February 25, 2010

AT&T’s breach, finding and declaring that AT&T is liable to, and required to pay and/or credit,
NewPhone for all amounts wrongfully charged and. withhield, under-credited or under-refunded
by AT&T, including late payment charges, penalties.and interést, cost and any other appropriate
armounts;

{4) for all general and séquitable rélief deeried appropriate by the Commission; and

(5) that the Commission grant such further relict to NewPhone as the Commission deems
just and proper.

‘Respectfully submitted this 25™ day of February, 2010,

Respectfully submitted,

s
Matthew Feil, Esq
Akerman Sentetfift

106 Fast College Avenue, Suite 1200
(850) 425-1614

Paul F. Guarisco (LA Bar Roll No. 22070)

W. Bradley Kline (LA Bar Roll No. 32530)
PHELPS DUNBAR LLP

Ii City Plaza, 400 Convention Sireet, Suite 1100
Post Office Box 4412

Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70821

Telephone: (225) 376-0241

Facsimile: (225) 381-9197
paul.guarisco@phelps.com

COUNSEL FOR IMAGE ACCESS, INC. d/b/a
NEWPHONE
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Answer, Defenses, Counterclaim
February 25,2010

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I'HEREBY CERTIFY that a trae and correct copy of the foregoing has been served upon

the following by email, and/or U.S. Mail this 25" day of February, 2010.

| Charles Murphy, Esq.
Jamie Morrow, Esg;
Office of the General Counsel
Florida Public Servige Commission
2540 Shumard Oak Boulevard
Tallahassee, F1, 32399-0850
- cmurphy@psc.state. fl.us
jmorrow(@psc.state.flus

E. Earl Edenfield, Jr.
Tracy W. Hatch.

| Manuel A. Guardian

e/o Gregory R. Follensbee
130 South Monroé Street
Suite 400

| Tallahassee, FL. 32301

| mg2708@att.com
th9467@att.com

Paul F, Guarisco

' Phelps Dunbar LLP
11 City Plaza
400 Convention Street-Suite 1100
P.O. Box4412
Baton Rouge, LA 70821-4412
paul.guarisco@phelps.com

Jim Dry
President
Image Access, Inc. d/b/a NewPhone
5555 Hilton Avenue, Ste 605
' Baton Rouge, LA 70808
jimdry@newphone com
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By:

éﬁheW'iFeil, Esq —
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